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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Clark County Courthouse, built in 1899, is a two and one-half story - . structure.
The major mass of the structure is rectangular with a six story parapeted clock tower on
the northwestern corner, hexagon towers on the three remaining sides, a projecting en-
closed entrance porch on the north, and a twice-projecting bay with enclosed entrance
porch on the west. The roof is a combination of hips and gables with six sided conical
roofs on the hexagon towers. The towers are topped in finials and there is cresting on the
roof major. Windows are segmental arches on the first story, and full arches with double
rows of brick voussiors on the second, with the exception of the north elevation, where
windows are flat arches on the first story and relieving arches on the second. Windows
have stone lentils and sills. Opening on entrance porches are three centered arches whose
radii are trimmed in terra cotta.

Walls on the first floor have wainscots of narrow vertical boarding. Floors are finished
in ceramic tiles. Air vents are iron filigree. Two stairs lead to the second floor; both
have elaborately turned newel posts and balusters. The second floor passageway has a
vaulted ceiling, (non-structural).  Jury boxes, judge's bench, floors, and lighting fix-
tures are original.

Alterations include a small rectangular addition to the east elevation of the building and
a dropped ceiling in the courtroom. Originally the clock tower was topped by a conical
roof.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Built in 1899 by R. S. O'Neal after a Charles Thompson design, the Clark County Courthouse
is a Romanesque-styled, architecturally significant structure that occupies a site and
serves a purpose (i.e., county courthouse) closely connected with the early settlement of
Arkadelphia, the county seat. Also, in the area of community planning, the original town
plan in Arkadelphia utilized the courtsquare as a community focal point. However, this
initial plan was soon abandoned and the business/commercial district developed along an
east-west Main Street axis. Finally, the county courthouse in Clark County, as in the rest
of Arkansas, acts as a structural symbol of American government while it serves as the cen-
ter of political activity.

« Named for William Clark, Governor of the Missouri Territory, Clark County was created as
the fourth county in the Arkansas Territory by the Missouri Legislature on December 15, 1818.
In 1842 Arkadelphia became the fifth location for the county seat when a brick courthouse
was built in the center of the townsquare.

The construction of the courthouse provided the major impetus for the early settlement and
growth of Arkadelphia. Originally called Blakeley's Hill, the town-site was a high bluff
on the west bank of the Ouachita River, a large navigable river which cuts across the coun-
ty. The commissioners who chose the site changed its name to Arkadelphia, platted lots and
held a public sale of lots on February 8, 1843, for the purpose of raising funds to pay for
the courthouse.

In 1899 the county hired Charles Thompson, then Arkansas's leading architect, to design a
new and larger courthouse. The end product was the large two and a half story, brick Roman-
esque-style structure that continues to dominate the courtsquare in Arkadelphia. The court-
house occupies the site of its predecessor. Virtually unaltered, the irregular mass of the
structure features a six-story parapeted clock tower on its north-east corner. The conical
roof which once surmounted this tower has been removed. Hexagonal towers with steeple roofs
are located on the three remaining corners. The three entrances to the building (north,
west and south elevations) are approached through Romanesque-arched porches. Terra cotta
tablets bearing the name of the courthouse and its date of construction molded in script

are located above the porch arches. A compatible, rectangular one-story brick addition pro-
jects from the east elevation.

The interior remains in excellent condition and is distinguished by the amount and condition
of the original wooden trim. Both large interior stairways are in excellent condition and
are unaltered. Detailing in the second floor courtroom, judge's chamber and jury room
exhibits a high degree of craftsmanship. However, a modern drop ceiling obscures the
original ceiling in the courtroom.
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In Arkansas the county government is the first and perhaps most personal link in the chain
of representative democracy and the county courthouse serves as a tangible symbol of this
fact. Most administrative and judicial officials in county government are elected through
a county-wide election, while the members of the fiscal body, the Quorum Court, are elected
in township elections. It is the responsibility of county government to assess and tax
property, maintain the county highways, provide rural law enforcement, maintain the county
jail, regulate the incorporation and boundary expansion of towns and cities, issue marriage
licenses, systematically file records of deeds, mortgages, liens and bonds, perform judi-
cial duties in minor civil or criminal cases and other duties too numerous to list.

The building which houses county government in Arkansas is often the most elaborate struc-
ture in the county. The Clark County Courthouse was probably, at the time of its construc-
tion, the finest and largest building in Clark County and today stands as one of the most
impressive examples of historic architecture in Arkadelphia. After a survey of all Arkan-
sas courthouses conducted by the Arkansas Historic Preservation Program in 1975, the Clark
County Courthouse was rated as being one of Arkansas's most significant surviving county

courthouses.
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5 U | 'ARKANSAS HISTORIC PRESERVATION PROG
Suite 500, Continental Building - Markham and Main - Little Rock, Arkansas
May 18, 1978

g: (601) 371-2763

The Honorable R. W. Stevenson
Clark County Judge

Clark County Courthouse
Arkadelphia, AR 71923

Re: Clark Co. Courthouse, Arkadelphia

Dear Judge Stevenson:

The staff of the Arkansas Historic Preservation Program is preparing a
National Register nomination for the above captioned property which will
be presented to the Arkansas State Review Committee at their June meeting.
If approved, the nomination will be submitted to the National Register
office in Washington for final consideration.

The National Register of Historic Places is a listing of historic sites,
buildings, objects and districts from all across the country that are
worthy of preservation. Entry in the National Register is an honor which
places an obligation on a private owner. It does, however, provide
protection through comment by the Advisory Council on Historic Preservation
from federally financed, assisted or licensed projects that might affect

a National Register property.

On October 4, 1976, the President signed a Tax Reform Act of which
Section 2124 refers to tax incentives for historic properties. Enclosed
you will find an information sheet on that tax act.

If you have any questions concerning the program or this property's
nomination, please contact Sandra Taylor Smith of our staff.

Enclosed are two copies of this letter. Please complete the form below,
sign and return the original to our office. The copy is for your files.
We would appreciate receiving any comments you might have concerning the
nomination of this property. If we do not hear from you within 30 days
your approval will be assumed.

Sincerely,

B oo Loue. LWosdaie )

Barbara Woodard, Deputy Director
Arkansas Historic Preservation Program

I approve of the nomination of %he above property to the National Register

of Historic Places. Yes No
Comments: (:;;:;;%?
S )99 oA
Date Signature

A Division of the Deparment of Akansas Natural Cultural Heritage
An Equal Opportunity Empolyer.
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Acting Director

Arkansas Historic Preservation Program
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Little Rock, Arkansas 72201






